
INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE MEETING   
6:00 P.M.  

Monday, December 28, 2015 
 

HAMPDEN TOWN OFFICE 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1. MINUTES – 11/23/2015 Meeting 

2. OLD BUSINESS 

a. Protocols for Use of Public Safety Community Room – Chief Joe Rogers  

b. Municipal Building HVAC System and Software – proposal from Penobscot Temperature 
Controls – potential funding through Municipal Building Reserve 

i. Changing out thermostat to redlink (remote controlled) – proposal received 

ii. Repairs to Freon circuit leak from rooftop HVAC unit – proposal received 

iii. Addition of diffuser to rear office to improve air balance in office area – 
proposal received 

iv. Complete update of HVAC control system (PC boards, etc) – proposal 
pending 

c. Library bid process and timeline – review of draft Request for Bid 

3. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Update, illicit sewer connection, 44 Sunrise Lane 

b. Proposed changes to sewer rates to cover operational and prior incurred costs – Town 
Manager Angus Jennings 

c. Status of signal controller updates at 202 and Western Avenue – DPW Director Sean 
Currier 

d. Discussion, snow plowing routes for sidewalks  

e. Discussion, rain garden at Municipal Building  

f. Discussion, proposed PERC agreement for Municipal Solid Waste after March 2018 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

5. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
 
 



INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE MEETING   
Monday, November 23, 2015 

 
MEETING MINUTES – DRAFT  

 
Attending:  

Councilor Dennis Marble, Chair    Councilor Stephen Wilde 
Mayor David Ryder     Councilor Terry McAvoy  

 Councilor Greg Sirois    Town Manager Angus Jennings 
 Councilor William Shakespeare (arrived 6:14 PM) Public Safety Chief Joe Rogers 
        Resident Bill Lippincott  
 
Chairman Marble called the meeting to order at 6 PM. 
 

1. MINUTES – 10/26/2015 Meeting – Motion by Mayor Ryder, seconded by 
Councilor McAvoy to approve the October 26, 2015 minutes. Unanimous (5-
0) vote in favor. 

2. OLD BUSINESS 
a. Pine Tree Landfill Post Closure Monitoring – review of proposal 

received from Drumlin, LLC and SoilMetrics, LLC – Town Manager 
Jennings provided a summary of his memo in the meeting packet, 
including background on the vendor’s prior monitoring on the Town’s 
behalf. Councilor Marble asked how this work had been paid for in the 
past, and Manager Jennings said it had been paid by the operator of the 
landfill through the Host Community Benefits Agreement. Mayor Ryder 
asked whether the Town’s Environmental Trust may be able to fund any of 
this monitoring and Manager Jennings said he would look into this. Motion 
by Mayor Ryder, seconded by Councilor McAvoy to refer the proposal 
from Drumlin, LLC and SoilMetrics, LLC to the Finance Committee with a 
favorable recommendation. Unanimous (5-0) vote in favor. 
Because Chief Rogers was in attendance to discuss Item 3.B. on tonight’s 
agenda, the Committee agreed to take this matter out of order. 

 
3.b.Protocols for Use of Public Safety Community Room – Chief Rogers 

provided background regarding the groups, both government related and 
otherwise, that have used the public safety training room over the years. 
Years ago, it was a good idea to open up use of this facility to the public, 
but as regulations have become more strict it has raised concerns 
regarding access to the public safety facility. He said that it’s important, at 
a minimum, to limit access to the room relative to what’s been happening. 
The facility does not have a commercial kitchen or showers. 

 (Councilor Shakespeare arrived at 6:14 PM). 



 Mayor Ryder asked whether it would be possible to create a separate 
entrance to the training room to minimize interface with people coming to 
the public safety facility. Chief Rogers noted that this would still require 
shared access to the restrooms. He also noted that other meeting rooms 
are available to community groups, such as VFW, Kiwanis, Snowmobile 
Club and the Skehan Center.  

 Councilor Marble asked Chief Rogers what changes would be needed to 
ensure compliance with regulations, and Chief Rogers said that certain 
records (including print and computer screens) can’t be visible to the 
public. Town employees, including public works, would need to be 
fingerprinted and subject to background checks. Contractors working on 
the facility must be escorted.  

 Chief Rogers said that, if the policy allowing use of the room by 
community groups is changed, this would be communicated to the groups 
with an explanation for the reason for the change, along with suggestions 
regarding other available meeting spaces. 

 Councilor Shakespeare asked whether this would affect the ability to have 
people here during the annual stream clean-up event, and Chief Rogers 
said that occasional, monitored use would be acceptable.  

 The Committee agreed that changes to the current policy should be 
considered, and Chief Rogers and Manager Jennings agreed that they 
would work on this for consideration at the next meeting of the 
Infrastructure Committee. 

 
b. Turtlehead Park / Marina – condition of dock and boat ramp – 

Manager Jennings presented his memorandum and photos in the meeting 
packet, which illustrate the poor condition of the floats and the boat ramp. 
Councilor McAvoy asked whether Bangor has a boat launch, and Mayor 
Ryder said they don’t – just docks. Councilor Marble asked what the Town 
should be responsible for regarding maintenance. Councilor Sirois 
expressed concern regarding the fueling station on the floats. He is more 
comfortable with the Town’s role in maintaining the ramp, but feels that the 
fueling station should be the responsibility of a private party. Councilors 
Shakespeare, McAvoy and Wilde also expressed concern about the 
fueling station. Councilor Wilde is concerned about the Town’s liability, but 
agreed that the Town has some responsibility for the ramp/launch. 
Manager Jennings agreed, noting that because Federal funds were part of 
the creation of the Turtle Head Park, the Town does bear responsibility to 
provide public access to the water, and that that ramp would satisfy this 
requirement. Mayor Ryder suggested transferring ownership of the floats 
to a private party such as Hamlin’s. Councilor Shakespeare noted that 
Hamlin’s already puts the floats in and takes them out seasonally, and 
stores them. Manager Jennings suggested that it may be helpful if the 
Council declares that the floats are surplus public property and therefore 



subject to disposition. Manager Jennings was also directed to look into 
what was the basis of the quote that Hamlin’s received in June with a price 
of almost $25,000 to repair the ramp. 

 
c. Municipal Building HVAC System and Software – update – Manager 

Jennings provided an update regarding his ongoing communications with 
Penobscot Temperature Controls, including pending installation of 
improved air filters in the public safety building to partially address 
concerns about air quality. Manager Jennings has invited a proposal to 
improve the HVAC system. 

 
3. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Update on “Spruce Up the Library” work supported by a 2015 Grant 
from the Stephen and Tabitha King Foundation, including work 
already complete (painting, trim boards) and upcoming RFP for LED 
lighting – Manager Jennings updated the Committee regarding the 
receipt of grant funding in March 2015 to support, among other work, 
installation of LED lighting throughout the library. Manager Jennings is 
working with Library Director Lozito to prepare a Request for Bid, and will 
keep the Committee apprised regarding this initiative. 

 
b. Protocols for Use of Public Safety Community Room 

This item was taken out of order and addressed earlier in the meeting. 

 
c. Potential Town Mailbox Policy – Manager Jennings presented the 

recommendation of Public Works Director Currier that the Town adopt a 
policy applicable to Town roads comparable to the policy already in effect 
relative to State roads. Councilor Sirois made a motion, seconded by 
Mayor Ryder, to refer to the Council adoption of a policy along the lines of 
the State policy, but customized for Hampden. Councilor McAvoy and 
Manager Jennings expressed concern about the provision in the draft 
policy that would allow the Town to remove a mailbox that was 
constructed with impermissible materials (i.e. stone, granite etc.), then 
back-charge the homeowners. The Committee agreed that this language 
should not be part of Hampden’s policy. Motion by Councilor Sirois, 
seconded by Councilor McAvoy to recommend adoption of the policy with 
this revision. Information about the policy should be made available via 
local cable, the Town Manager newsletter, and other venues. 

 
d. Local Government Efficient Fund Request for Grant Proposals – 

discussion – questions due 12/4/15 (grant applications due 1/15/16) – 



The Committee and Manager Jennings discussed the grant materials and 
agreed that the type of work that would be needed in order to explore 
efficiencies that could be achieved would require significant time from the 
Town Manager and other Towns’ Managers. This work would be 
worthwhile, but it was not seen that the grant as written would be helpful, 
and instead that it would create more paperwork and reporting 
requirements that would take time away from the work itself. 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – None. 

 
5. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS – None.  

 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 
 
Respectfully submitted –  
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

 



 

HAMPDEN PUBLIC SAFETY TRAINING ROOM USE POLICY 
 

 
A.  Room Use Priorities 

Use of the Public Safety Training Room is limited to the following purposes, in this 
priority: 
 

1. Voting location for all municipal, state, federal elections 
2. Hampden Public Safety Department Training  
3. Training for other Hampden municipal departments 
4. Training space for other governmental entities, including regional trainings 

 
With the exception of voting, use of the room will be on a first come, first served 
basis. Staff members wishing to utilize the room should check the schedule and 
reserve dates as early as possible. Scheduling shall be done through the Hampden 
Public Safety administrative assistant. 

 
B.  Responsibility of Municipal Personnel for Training Room Use 

A Hampden employee shall serve as the single point of contact for any use of the 
Training Room, including regional trainings, and shall be responsible for completing, 
or ensuring completion of, all associated responsibilities. 
 
The Municipal Department or Personnel requesting use of the room, or “sponsoring” 
its use by a non-Hampden governmental entity, shall be responsible for: 
 

1. Communicating with attendees about where they should and shouldn’t park, 
and addressing any concerns with parking should it arise. 

2. Maintaining building security - at no time shall anyone be permitted 
unescorted access to areas designated as public safety work or storage 
space. 

3. Set up prior to and clean up after use. 
 
C.  Rules for use of Community Room by non-Hampden governmental entities: 
 

1. Parking for room users (during the work day) shall be along the sides of the 
building in the upper lot, in spaces in the lower lot, and in free spaces behind 
the post office.  No parking during the day in spaces in front of the municipal 
building. (See attached diagram for entrance and parking areas) 

2. Wireless internet is available on site, but there is no availability on site for 
photocopying, technical support, or provision of projectors or other 
equipment. 

3. Room use is confined to the Community Room only. Access to the remainder 
of the Public Safety office and living space is not available. This includes the 
kitchen, unless special permission is granted in advance. 



 

4. Entities utilizing the room shall be required to pay for any and all damages to 
the facility caused by participants of their activity. 

 
 
D. Effective Date 

 
Policy Effective Date:  July 7, 2009 
 
Council Approved: July 6, 2009 
 
Council Amended: January __, 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





 

HAMPDEN PUBLIC SAFETY TRAINING ROOM USE POLICY 
 

 
A.  Room Use Priorities 

Use of the Public Safety Training Room is limited to the following purposes, in this 
priority: 
 

1. Voting location for all municipal, state, federal elections 
2. Hampden Public Safety Department Training  
3. Training for other Hampden municipal departments 
4. Training space for other governmental entities, including regional trainings 

 
With the exception of voting, use of the room will be on a first come, first served 
basis. Staff members wishing to utilize the room should check the schedule and 
reserve dates as early as possible. Scheduling shall be done through the Hampden 
Public Safety administrative assistant. 

 
B.  Responsibility of Municipal Personnel for Training Room Use 

A Hampden employee shall serve as the single point of contact for any use of the 
Training Room, including regional trainings, and shall be responsible for completing, 
or ensuring completion of, all associated responsibilities. 
 
The Municipal Department or Personnel requesting use of the room, or “sponsoring” 
its use by a non-Hampden governmental entity, shall be responsible for: 
 

1. Communicating with attendees about where they should and shouldn’t park, 
and addressing any concerns with parking should it arise. 

2. Maintaining building security - at no time shall anyone be permitted 
unescorted access to areas designated as public safety work or storage 
space. 

3. Set up prior to and clean up after use. 
 
C.  Rules for use of Community Room by non-Hampden governmental entities: 
 

1. Parking for room users (during the work day) shall be along the sides of the 
building in the upper lot, in spaces in the lower lot, and in free spaces behind 
the post office.  No parking during the day in spaces in front of the municipal 
building. (See attached diagram for entrance and parking areas) 

2. Wireless internet is available on site, but there is no availability on site for 
photocopying, technical support, or provision of projectors or other 
equipment. 

3. Room use is confined to the Community Room only. Access to the remainder 
of the Public Safety office and living space is not available. This includes the 
kitchen, unless special permission is granted in advance. 

Deleted: COMMUNITY 

Deleted: RENTAL/

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", First line:  0"

Deleted: The Hampden Community Room’s 
use priorities are as follows

Deleted: Police/Fire/personnel 

Deleted: for the Town of Hampden

Deleted: Training 

Deleted: space for Hampden 

Deleted: Regional t

Deleted: municipal-

Deleted:  related

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25",  No bullets or
numbering

Deleted: <#>Meeting space for local non-
profit agencies¶
<#>Training space for local companies 
(Fee required)¶

Deleted: Department 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Numbered +
Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start
at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.75" +
Indent at:  1"

Deleted: Hampden Municipal Departments 
wishing to utilize the community room shall 
complete a Municipal Department Request 
Form.  Departments using the room are 
required to s

Deleted: -municipal-



 

4. Entities utilizing the room shall be required to pay for any and all damages to 
the facility caused by participants of their activity. 

 
 
D. Effective Date 

 
Policy Effective Date:  July 7, 2009 
 
Council Approved: July 6, 2009 
 
Council Amended: January __, 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Deleted: <#>The facility set up and clean 
up is the responsibility of the entity 
requesting use of the room. A $25 
refundable cleaning deposit is required prior 
to room use and will be returned 
immediately after room use if left in clean 
and neat condition. ¶
<#>Local companies utilizing the space 
shall make arrangements in advance 
before bringing any large vehicles, trailers, 
or outside demonstration materials to the 
municipal complex. Space for such activities 
is very limited.¶

Deleted:  

Deleted: <#>Entities utilizing the facility 
for activities involving children shall insure 
that there are sufficient adult supervisors to 
keep noise and activity at reasonable levels. 
This facility is located in a Public Safety area 
and the business of police, fire, and EMS is 
the first priority there. Personnel in these 
areas are on duty 24/7 and we ask for 
courtesy to them while utilizing the facility.¶
<#>Room users shall be required to fill out 
a Room Use Request form and submit it to 
the Town Manager, or his/her designee for 
approval, at least one month prior to the 
requested date.¶
<#>For-profit entities utilizing the space 
shall pay a fee of $50 for ½ day or evening 
use and $100 for full-day use. Half day and 
evening use is defined as 4 hours or less, 
including clean-up.¶

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"



 

 Deleted: ¶
¶
¶
HAMPDEN COMMUNITY ROOM ¶
ROOM USE REQUEST FORM¶
(Non-Hampden-Municipal-Department)¶
Date of Application: ________________¶
¶
Name of Entity Requesting Use 
_______________________________________
_ ¶
Address:  

_________________________________ ¶
_________________________________ ¶

Telephone: 
_________________________________ ¶

Email: ______________________________
___ ¶
¶
Contact Person Name: 

_____________________________________
___¶

Address: __________________________
______________ ¶

_______________________________
_________ ¶

Telephone: ________________________
________________ ¶

Email: __________________________
______________ ¶
¶
Date Room Requested for 
Use: ____________________________ ¶
Number of 
Participants: _________________________
___ ¶
If event involving children - # of adult 
supervisors _______¶
Time 
required: __________________________
__¶
¶
I, __________________________, have read 
the Hampden Community Room Use Policy and 
agree to adhere to all terms and conditions of 
that policy.¶
¶
Date: __________________   

Signature: __________________________¶
***************************************
**************************¶
Application Granted ___________¶
Application Denied  ____________¶

If denied, reason 
_______________________________________
______¶
_______________________________________
_________________ ___¶
Fee Paid (if any) $_____________¶
Date Paid ______________¶
¶
Cleaning deposit paid $ __________  Date: 
___________¶
Cleaning deposit refunded:  Yes _____  Date: 
______¶

No ______  Reason for retention 
________________________________¶ ...









  
 
 

REQUEST FOR BID 
 

Town of Hampden – Lighting and Electrical Work at Edythe Dyer Library 
 
The Town of Hampden is seeking bids for electrical work at the Edythe Dyer Library including but 
not limited to: 
 

1. Lighting system – interior and exterior; 
2. Connecting and disconnecting electrical equipment to accommodate other trades during 

project; 
3. Exit and emergency lighting; and 
4. Clean up and proper disposal of project materials at end of every work day. 

 
The Town has prepared a detailed Scope of Services including specifications for lighting fixtures. 
The Scope of Services, fixture schedule, and a layout plan of the facility are attached to this 
Request for Bid. 
 
Interested bidders who wish to view the project prior to bidding are invited to attend a pre-bid 
walk-through of the facility on _______, January ___, 2016 at ____ at the Edythe Dyer Library, 
269 Main Road North, Hampden, ME. Questions should be addressed to the Town Manager at 
862-3034, Monday through Thursday from 7:30 a.m. until 6 p.m. 
 
Sealed bids, clearly marked “Library Electrical” must be received no later than ___________, 
2016 at ______addressed to  
   

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
  Town of Hampden 
  106 Western Avenue 
  Hampden, ME  04444 
 
Bids will be publicly opened at the Hampden Town Office Conference Room at ______ on 
__________, 2016. Bids shall include a statement of proposed price to complete the work  
 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 



including sufficient detail for the Town to understand the basis of the costs. In addition, billing 
rates for all proposed personnel shall be provided. 
 
Upon receipt of bids the Town Manager will convene an Advisory Group comprised of the Library 
Director, the Director of Public Works, two members of the Library Board of Trustees, and the 
Town Manager. The Advisory Group will review and evaluate all bids received. Any bids found to 
be incomplete, non-responsive or that fail to meet any of the minimum standards in the Scope of 
Services will be disqualified from further consideration. The Advisory Group expects to schedule 
interviews with two or more vendors that submit bids that are complete, fully responsive to the 
Scope of Services, and that meet or exceed the minimum standards in the Scope of Services. The 
Advisory Group reserves the right to conduct reference checks based on the bidders’ prior or 
ongoing clients. 
 
Following the interview and evaluation process, the Advisory Group will make a 
recommendation to the Town Council’s Finance Committee regarding whether to award a 
contract, and if so to which bidder. Proposed price will be considered in the Advisory Group’s 
evaluations and recommendation, but the Advisory Group reserves the right to recommend a 
bidder that is not the lowest price bidder if such recommendation is, in the opinion of the 
Advisory Group, justified based on the quality, experience and/or professional reputation of the 
bidder. 
 
The Town Council’s Finance Committee will review the recommendation of the Advisory Group 
during a public meeting, and will prepare its own recommendation to the Town Council 
regarding whether to award a contract, and if so to which bidder.  
 
The Hampden Town Council reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids. If awarded, a 
contract will be formally awarded at a regularly scheduled meeting of the Town Council. 
 
Prior to execution of a contract, the contractor must provide proof of workers compensation 
insurance, and of liability insurance with a $400,000 minimum coverage, and shall provide a 
certificate naming the Town of Hampden as additionally insured. 
 
 
Attachments: Scope of Services 

Fixture Schedule 
Layout plan of the Library 



Edythe Dyer Library  

ELECTRICAL 26 00 00 -  1 

 

 

 

SECTION 26 00 00 

ELECTRICAL 

PART I- GENERAL 

 
1.1 SCOPE 

 
A. The work covered by this section includes the furnishing of labor and materials, equipment, and 

incidentals and the performing of operations in connection with "electrical work" as indicated in the 
scope and/or specified herein and including incidental items to effect a finished, complete and 
operable system as indicated.  The electrical work shall include but not be limited to: 

 
 

1. Lighting system - interior and exterior. 
2. Connecting and disconnecting electrical equipment to accommodate other trades during project. 
3. Exit and emergency lighting. 
4. Clean up and proper disposal of project materials at end of every work day. 

 
Work shall be subject to the conditions of the contract and shall be in strict accordance with these 
drawings and specifications. 

 
B. Assume responsibility to have thoroughly examined the drawings and specifications including 

addenda. Questions over any conflicting information shown on the drawings and specifications 
shall be referred by email  to Debbie Lozito of Edythe Dyer Library for clarification. 
debbie.lozito@edythedyer.lib.me.us 

 
C. The term "Contractor" used hereinafter shall designate the Electrical Contractor. 

 
1.2 CODES AND STANDARDS 

 
A. Where referred to, published standard specifications of technical societies, trade associations and 

governmental agencies codes and regulations of Underwriters and protective organizations, Federal, 
State and Municipal regulations and codes and publications of a similar nature shall be the edition 
current as of the date of this Specification. 

 
B. The applicable requirements of the publications of the following organizations shall apply to the 

work under this section as if fully written herein: 
 

1 . American National Standards Institute, Inc. (ANSI) 
2. Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers (IEEE) 
3. National Electrical Manufacturers Associations (NEMA) 
4. National Fire Codes 



ELECTRICAL 26 00 00 - 2 

 

 

Edythe Dyer Library 

 

 

 

 
5. Underwriters Laboratories, Inc. (UL) 
6. Federal, State and Municipal Building Codes, and all other Authorities having jurisdiction. 
7. National Electrical Code (NEC) 
8. Insulated Power Cable Engineers Associated Specification (IPCES) 
9. American Society for Testing Materials Specifications (ASTM) 
10. National Bureau of Standards Handbook (NBS) 
11. Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) 
12. National Electrical Safety Code (NESC) 
13. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 

 
1.4 MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 

 
A. Materials shall be of the best quality. Workmanship shall be of highest grade and construction shall 

be done according to best practices of the trade. 
 

B. Provide, when required, labeled samples of material or equipment specified herein or proposed to be 
used in this work. 

 
C. Where words "furnish", "provide", or "install" are mentioned, either singly or in combination, these 

words are hereby interpreted to mean "furnish and install" or "provide and install", including 
materials complete with connections, supplemental devices, accessories and appurtenances, unless 
specifically noted otherwise. These words are likewise hereby interpreted as being prefixed to 
materials, equipment, and apparatus hereinafter mentioned, either in abbreviated or scheduled 
information or in the technical sections of the specifications. 

 
1.5 SHOP DRAWINGS 

 
A. Submit for review, electronic submittals and not less than two (2) sets of Shop Drawings of the 

materials, fixtures and equipment to be incorporated in the work. Information shall contain specific 
reference to catalog numbers and shall be qualified in writing as required. No considerations will be 
given to brochure or catalog information not specifically designated or referenced to the 
specification by an identifying number. 

 
B.  Shop drawings that are facsimiled, (FAX) produced, or are  photocopies of FAX documents will 

not be considered or reviewed. Only originals and or photocopied originals, complying with 
paragraph A above will be considered. 

 
C. Before consideration, electrical submittal packages shall include cover pages for each of the 

electrical equipment groups, i.e. lighting, wiring devices. The cover page of each group shall be 
typewritten and contain the following information: 

 
I. Project location. 
2. Electrical Contractor and phone number. 
3. Product manufacturer and phone number. 
4. Distributor or supplier's company and phone number. 
5. Order date and distributor order number. 
6. Approximate on-site delivery date after submittal review and return. 



Edythe Dyer Library 

ELECTRICAL 26 00 00 -  3

 

 

 

 
D. Shop drawings must bear the specifiers review stamp. In the event that the specifier rejects shop 

drawings, the shop drawing must be revised and resubmitted for review. 
 

E. Shop drawings shall be submitted to the specifier no later than 14 days after award of General 
Contract. 

 
1.6 SUBSTITUTIONS 

 
A. Reference in the specifications or on the drawings to any product, material, fixture, form or type of 

construction, by proprietary name, manufacturer, make or catalog number, establishes a standard of 
quality or design and is not meant to limit competition. Use any equivalent substitute provided 
favorable written review by the specifier is first obtained. Any substituted system must show a 
direct comparison to the system specified  and  all  deviations  from  the  specified  system  clearly 
identified. In all cases, the suitability of any substituted item or system shall be determined by the 
specifier/owner.  If the substituted item or system is rejected the item or systems specified shall be 
furnished and installed at no additional cost to the Owner. 

 
1.7 CODES, PERMITS, INSPECTIONS 

 
A. The installation shall comply with laws and regulations applying to the electrical installation in effect 

at the site with regulations of any agency having jurisdiction, and with regulations of the National 
Electrical Code (NEC). 

 
B. Obtain and pay for permits required by the ordinances at the site. After completion of the work, 

furnish the Owner a certificate of final inspection and approval from the Inspection Bureau having 
jurisdiction. 

 
C. Rejected materials shall be removed from the site and new materials furnished, retested and installed 

to the satisfaction of the Architect without additional cost to the Owner. 
 

D. Inspect the site and survey the conditions to be encountered in the performance of the Work prior to 
starting the work. Failure to be familiar with the conditions shall not relieve or reduce responsibility 
for full completion of the work in accordance with the provisions of the contract. 

 
1.8 TEMPORARY LIGHT AND POWER 

 
A. Temporary light and power shall be installed and maintained under this contract for use by all trades 

for the duration of construction complete with wiring, switches, protective devices and similar 
equipment as may be required. Temporary lights and power shall be completely removed no later 
than project completion. 



26 00 00 - 4ELECTRICAL

 

 

Edythe Dyer Library 
 

1.9 ACCEPTANCE 
 

A. Before acceptance of the work under this section, damaged or imperfect materials shall be refinished 
or replaced, debris, scaffolding and tools shall be removed and premises shall be "broom clean" to 
the satisfaction of the Owner. 

 
1.10 GUARANTEE 

 
A. Guarantee materials and installations under normal use to be free of defects and poor workmanship 

for a period of one (1) year from the date of acceptance. Any replacement of parts or adjustments, 
including labor made necessary by inherent defects, shall be provided by the contractor without cost 
to the Owner within the guarantee period. 

 
I.II PROTECTION OF EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS 

 
A. Protect equipment and material for the electrical work after delivery, before and after installation. 

This protection must be extended against pilferage, dampness and damages from any cause until the 
work is accepted by the Owner. 

 
1.12 ELECTRICAL REFERENCE SYMBOLS 

 
A. Symbols shown on the Drawings show approximate locations of fixtures, outlet boxes, conduit runs 

and other equipment, unless otherwise detailed. The exact location shall be governed by structural 
conditions and obstructions. This is not to be construed as to permit redesigning systems. Outlets 
shall be connected from circuits as shown on the drawings. Locate and install boxes and equipment 
where they will be readily accessible. 

 
1.13 MATERIALS AND INSTALLATION 

 
A. Only the best materials of each class specified shall be used and the installation shall be made in a 

neat and workmanlike manner, complete in every detail, ready for immediate satisfactory operation 
by the Owner. 

 
B. PART 2 - PRODUCTS 

2.1 MATERIALS, GENERAL 
 

A. Unless otherwise indicated, the materials to be furnished under this specification shall be the 
standard products of manufacturers regularly engaged in the production of such equipment and shall 
be the manufacturer's latest standard design that complies with the specification requirements. 



                                 Edythe Dyer Library 

ELECTRICAL 26 00 00 - 5

 

 

 

 
B. Materials shall be delivered to the site in the original sealed containers of packages bearing the 

manufacturer's name and brand designated. Materials shall be stored in a clean, well-ventilated, 
warm area. Care shall be exercised in handling materials during delivery, storage and installation. 
Materials damaged, in the opinion of the Architect, shall be replaced at no additional cost to the 
Owner. 

 
2.2 EQUIPMENT MOUNTING AND SUPPORTS 

 

A. Provide supports including supplementary steel, channels, rods and guys required for the proper 
installation, mounting and support of equipment. 

 
B.     Supports shall be firmly attached and connected to building structural elements and constructed in an 

acceptable manner. Continuously threaded rods less than 3/8" in diameter, tie wire, or metal straps 
are not acceptable. 

 
C. Except as otherwise required by the Contract Documents the type and size of supports shall be as 

determined by the Contractor and shall be of sufficient strength and size to allow only a minimum 
deflection as required by codes or standards and the support manufacturer's requirements for 
loading. 

 

 
 

2.3 WIRING DEVICES 
 

A. Switches, receptacles and other utilization devices shall be specification grade. Switches shall have 
a minimum rating of 15 amperes. Mercury switches will not be accepted. 

 
B.    Receptacles and switches shall have a grounding pole and grounding terminal, which shall be 

connected to the outlet box with grounding conductor to establish grounding continuity. Green 
grounding screw must be used for grounding. 

 

C. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Wiring devices shall be Pass and Seymour or equal. Verify color with 

specifier.

 
 

 
 



ELECTRICAL 26 00 00 - 6

 

 

  

2.4 LIGHTING FIXTURES AND LAMPS 

 

A. Fixtures and lamps shall be the manufacturers specified in the Lighting Fixture Schedule.  

           Alternate fixtures may be submitted for pre-approval a minimum of 10 days prior to bid date. 
 

B. Energy Saving Ballasts for fluorescent fixtures shall be Class P electronic: high power factor; shall 
incorporate UL listed automatic resetting protection: shall be classified for quiet operation, "A" 
sound rating: shall be designed for a nominal 120 volt system as shown. Interchangeability of 
lamps and ballasts must be provided. Ballasts shall be designed, manufactured, and tested to meet 
the latest UL and ANSI standards and this requirement shall be certified by an independent testing 
organization.  

 

c.   Energy saving lamps of wattage, type and color indicated shall be furnished and installed in 

necessary quantity to completely lamp every fixture. Incandescent lamps installed in permanent 
lighting fixtures and used for lighting during construction shall be replaced on or just after the date 
of substantial completion.  Incandescent lamps shall be 130 volt, extended service type. 

 
D. LED lamps and fixtures shall have a minimum of a five (5) year manufactures warranty.  LED 

lamps shall be as indicated on the Lighting Fixture Schedule.  No Substitutions will be accepted. 
   
E. Guarantee equipment and wiring free from inherent mechanical and electrical defects for a period of 

one year from date of the final acceptance. Before the installations shall be considered completed 
and acceptable by the awarding authority, all new fixtures and devices must be installed and operating 
properly, and the job site must be clean of all items being replaced / upgraded as well as any trash associated 
with the project before final payment is made



                                 Edythe Dyer Library 

ELECTRICAL 26 00 00 - 7

 

 

PART 3 - EXECUTION 
 

3.1 LICENSE 
 

A. Electrical work shall be installed by persons duly licensed by the Electricians Board of the State of 
Maine. 

 
3.2 COORDINATION 

 
A. It shall be the responsibility of this contractor to coordinate his work with other trades to insure that 

his work is terminated is a satisfactory manner. 
B. The contractor is responsible for coordinating work to be performed on site with other trades AND 

INSURING THE WORK DOES NOT CONFLICT WITH NORMAL BUSINESS at Edythe Dyer 
Library. 

 
3.3 WORKMANSHIP AND PREPARATION 

 
A. Work shall be execute in workmanlike manner by experienced electricians in accordance with the 

most modern engineering practice and shall present a neat appearance when completed. The work 
shall be carefully laid out in advance and where cutting, channeling, chasing, or drilling of floors, 
walls, partitions, and ceiling or other surfaces is necessary for the proper installation, support or 
anchorage of the conduit, raceways or other electrical work, this work shall be carefully done and 
any damage to the building, piping or equipment shall be repaired by skilled mechanics of the trades 
involved and at no additional cost to the Owner. 

 
B. After installation, electrical equipment shall be protected to prevent damage during the construction 

period. Openings in conduits and boxes shall be closed to prevent entrance of foreign materials. 
The interior of boxes and cabinets shall be left clean, exposed surfaces shall be cleaned and plated 
surfaces polished. 

   
 

3.8 FIXTURES 
 

A. Fixtures shall be supported by building structural elements independent of furred or suspended 
ceilings. 

 
B. Recessed fixtures shall be supported by rod or bowchain, minimum of two (2) supports per 4' of 

fixture. 

 
C. The minimum number of supports for surface mounted fixtures shall equal on for each 4' of length 

plus one additional support: 4' two (2) supports: 8' three (3) supports:  12' four (4) supports. 
Additional supports shall be provided if required.  Attachment to



ELECTRICAL 26 00 00 - 8

                         Edythe Dyer Library
 

 

 
structural steel shall be bolted type, anchors and inserts shall be installed as an integral part of 
structural system. Explosive or cartridge driven type insert, anchors or supports are not acceptable. 

 
D.      Subsequent to review of shop drawings and prior to ordering fixtures, verify voltage at each fixture, 

also consult with others to determine the type of ceiling and ceiling suspension system in each and 
every room and order fixtures to suit and fit the particular ceiling and ceiling suspension system. 
Any extra costs because of failure on the part of this Contractor to verify voltage or ceiling 
requirements shall be paid for by this Contractor. 

 
 

3.9 INTENT OF DRAWINGS 

 
A. The drawings do not show in detail every conduit, junction box, or fitting, but material necessary to 

complete the electrical system in accordance with the best practices of the trade and to the complete 
satisfaction of the Architect, shall be furnished without additional compensation under this section 
of the specifications. No deviation from the layout shall be made without written approval from the 
Architect. 

 
3.10 RECORD DRAWINGS 

 
A. During the progress of the work, keep a set of drawings marked up to record deviations and changes 

from the Contract Drawings due to field conditions, change orders, amendments, revisions, addenda 
and other reasons to represent an accurate record of work as actually installed. Include an accurate 
layout of in-slab, under-slab, and buried conduits. 

 
B. Deviations from the Contract Documents shall be favorably reviewed by the Architect before 

installation. 

 
C. At the completion of the work, furnish to the Library a complete set of prints of the original 

Contract Drawings, corrected in a neat manner to reflect the above changes and representing an 
accurate record of work as actually installed. 

 
D. The record drawings shall be submitted to the specifier for review and corrected as deemed 

necessary. 

 
E. After favorable review, the record drawings shall become the property of the Owner. 

 
3.11 INSTRUCTIONS, OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE DATA 

 
A. At the completion of the work, deliver one (1) set of operating and maintenance instructions of 

equipment and systems to the Owner. Submit name and address of nearest available source of repair 
 

service and replacement equipment and parts to the owner and specifier. Explain and 
demonstrate the operation of all systems contained in Specification Section 26 00 00 
to the Owner's representative.  

 
B. Data shall include a complete set of shop drawings. 

 
C. Material shall first be submitted in preliminary form for review by the specifier.  

After review, submit two (2) copies in bound volumes to the specifier for distribution. 



EDYTHE L. DYER COMMUNITY LIBRARY

269 Main Road North, Hampden Maine 04444

Library Hours  
Monday and Wednesday 9am-8pm
Tuesday, Thursday and Friday 9am-5pm
Saturday 9am-2pm (Labor day to Memorial Day) http://www.edl.lib.me.us/

AREA Type Mfg  DESCRIPTION ACTION  QUANTITY  Acceptable Substitutions 

UPSTAIRS BACK 
OFFICE

A METALUX  32 Watt 2300 Lumen Dimmable fixture. Surface Mount. Replace existing fixtures 5 Per pre-approved submission 

OPEN AREA AT TOP 
OF STAIRS

A METALUX  32 Watt 2300 Lumen Dimmable fixture. Surface Mount. Replace exisitng fixtures 2 Per pre-approved submission 

DEBBIES OFFICE A METALUX  32 Watt 2300 Lumen Dimmable fixture. Surface Mount. Replace existing fixtures, INSTALL 
COMPATIBLE DIMMER SWITCH

4 Per pre-approved submission 

DEBBIES CLOSET B ETI  11.5 Watt 830 Lumen fixture Replace existing fixtures 1 Per pre-approved submission 

DEBBIES BATH C GE  4 Watt LED replacement  Replace lamps in Bath lights 3 Per pre-approved submission 

UPSTAIRS 
CHANDELIER

D GE  4 Watt LED replacement  Replace lamps and thoroughly clean fixture 9  NO alternates accepted 

UPSTAIRS 
CHANDELIER

D1-ALT METALUX  32 Watt 2300 Lumen Dimmable fixture. Surface Mount. Alternate to remove Chandelier and replace 
with LED fixture

1 Per pre-approved submission 

ENTRY 
CHANDELIER

D GE  4 Watt LED replacement  Replace lamps and thoroughly clean fixture 18  NO alternates accepted 

BLUE ROOM 
CHANDELIER

D GE  4 Watt LED replacement  Replace lamps and thoroughly clean fixture. 
Replace shade on missing bowl with shade 
from Childrens room fixture

15  NO alternates accepted 

EXIT EXIT SURE-LITES  LED EXIT Convert to LED Exit 1 Per pre-approved submission 

UPSTAIRS TOWER 
CEILING

F LAMPS 
PLUS

 40" Aerial Ceiling Fan with light kit.  Install LED lamps in 
light kit. 

Replace Centerbowl fixture with Fan/Light.  
Install LED lamps in light kit

1  NO alternates accepted 

UPSTAIRS TOWER 
UP/DOWN EDGE 

G ETI  LED Linear Tube  Remove ballast and Install LED tubes.  
Replace all acrylic lens pieces for shielding 
with new.

x Per pre-approved submission 

HALLWAY LIGHTING H WAC  12' Flex Rail Track system with surface mount 
transformer.  Provide with 5 fixtures per 12' section. 
Install with GE LED MR16 lamp LED7XDMR16D83035 

Remove Hallway Ceiling fixtures and install 
track.  Install LED lamps as specified

3 Per pre-approved submission 

HALLWAY CLOSET I ETI  11.5 Watt 830 Lumen fixture with Pull Chain Install LED fixture in closet 1 Per pre-approved submission 

BREAKFAST NOOK J ETI  22 Watt 1610 Lumen LED fixture Replace existing fixtures 2 Per pre-approved submission 

First Fiction Room 
CLOSET LIGHT

K ETI  20 Watt 1800 Lumen LED Strip light  Replace existing fixture 1 Per pre-approved submission 

First Fiction Room 
CEILING LIGHTS

L METALUX  29 Watt 2,800 Lumen surface wrap Replace existing fixtures with new -2 
fixtures per row

6 Per pre-approved submission 

LED4DCAM-C/827 # 65666

FMLED20WH830PR

LED4DCAC-C/827 # 65654

LED4DCAC-C/827 # 65654

LED4DCAC-C/827 # 65654

APX7R

SIMILAR TO STYLE #M2558-
M2561 WITH BRONZE FINISH 
AND WHITE BLADES
2' T8 LED TUBE 54105111         
3' T8 LED TUBE 54130111        
4' T8 LED TUBE 54108131

LM-K8811 

54617141

54075101

54261143

4BCLED-LD4-28SL-F-UNV-
L830-CD1-U

CATALOG NUMBER

FMLED20WH830PR

FMLED20WH830PR

FMLED20WH830PR

54606242



EDYTHE L. DYER COMMUNITY LIBRARY

First Fiction Room 
BOOK CASE LIGHTS

M-ALT ETI  11 Watt 700 Lumen cabinet lights Install on/off switch on book case end to 
control fixtures installed on top of book 
cases

12 Per pre-approved submission 

CHILDRENS ROOM 
MAIN LIGHTING

N COOPER  Suspended Linear LED Frosted lens   Remove 4 suspended bowl fixtures and 
replace with 2-12' suspended linear LED. 
Add dimmer switch

2  NO alternates accepted 

CHILDRENS ROOM 
CUBBY AREA

O COOPER  Lensed LED strip light 4' Remove 2 globe lights on beam.  Replace 
with LED fixture hidden on back of beam.

3  NO alternates accepted 

CHILDRENS ROOM 
WALL SCONCE

P PHILIPS  White Glass Wall sconce Replace exisitng Wall Sconce fixtures.  Lamp 
with GE#11328 

4 Per pre-approved submission 

CHILDRENS ROOM 
EMERGENCY LIGHT

Q COOPER  LED EMERGENCY LIGHT REPLACE EBU UNIT WITH NEW 1 Per pre-approved submission 

CHILDRENS ROOM 
OFFICE

 R COOPER  23 Watt 20" Square Flushmount LED Replace existing fixture 1 Per pre-approved submission 

FRONT DESK 
CEILING LIGHTS

R1 COOPER CRUZE LED FIXTURE PROVIDE WITH SURFACE MOUNT KIT Replace existing fixtures 6  NO alternates accepted 

FRONT DESK 
LIGHTS ENTRY WAY

S COOPER SLD606830WH  12.5 Watt Flush mount LED retrofit Replace existing fixtures 3  NO alternates accepted 

OUTSIDE BOOK 
RETURN

T RAB VANLED52WY-WHITE/ PCS  / 
VANLED RETROPLATE W

 LED CANOPY LIGHT Replace existing fixture 1 Per pre-approved submission 

OUTSIDE ENTRY U-ALT RAB ENTRA12/PC  LED ENTRY WAY LIGHT Replace existing fixtures 0 Per pre-approved submission 

OUTSIDE MOTION 
SENSOR LIGHTS

V GE  GE LED WEATHERPROOF FLOOD LAMP PAR 38 Relamp 2 existing fixtures with LED 4 Per pre-approved submission 

BATHROOM AT 
FOOT OF STAIRS

W GE LED11DA19/827  GE LED 60 Watt Equivalent Relamp fixture 2  NO alternates accepted 

SECOND FICTION 
ROOM

X GE LED10DR303/827W  GE LED 65 Watt BR30 Equivalent Relamp fixtures 16  NO alternates accepted 

KITCHEN Y METALUX  32 Watt 2300 Lumen Dimmable fixture. Surface Mount. Replace existing fixtures 1 Per pre-approved submission 

KITCHEN OVER 
SINK AND BY 

PANTRY

Z COOPER SLD606830WH  12.5 Watt Flush mount LED retrofit Replace existing fixture 2  NO alternates accepted 

LARGE PRINT 
ROOM

A1 COOPER  Lensed LED strip light 4' Remove bowl fixture replace with LED 1 Per pre-approved submission 

BIOGRAPHIES B1 COOPER  Lensed LED strip light 4' Remove bowl fixture replace with LED 1 Per pre-approved submission 

BIOGRAPHIES HALL C1 COOPER  Lensed LED strip light 4' Remove bowl fixture replace with LED 1 Per pre-approved submission 

REFERENCE ROOM 
MAGAZINES TRACK

D1 GE LED10DR303/827W  GE LED 65 Watt BR30 Equivalent Relamp fixtures 10  NO alternates accepted 

REFERENCE ROOM 
MAGAZINES WALL

E1 GE LED4DCAC-C/827 # 65654  GE LED Bent tip lamp Relamp fixtures 8  NO alternates accepted 

HALL BY DOWN 
STAIRS BATH

F1 ETI 54075101  22 Watt 1610 Lumen Surface Mount Replace existing fixtures 2 Per pre-approved submission 

         

FMLED20WH830PR

4SNLED-LD4-49SL-LN-UNV-
L835-CD1-U

4SNLED-LD4-49SL-LN-UNV-
L835-CD1-U
4SNLED-LD4-49SL-LN-UNV-
L835-CD1-U

4SNLED-LD4-49SL-LN-UNV-
L835-CD1-U

EDGE BOW#G4967

LEM

8300SP-2-0264D-3000K

24CZ-LD4-40-UNV-L835-CD1U 
/ SK-24-WS

LED12DP382W827

J2WL3L351DUNVACXXST12

54194112







Discharge Incident Report-44 Sunrise Lane-12.17.15-SJC.doc 

                           Maine Department of Environmental Protection  
 

NON-COMPLIANCE/DISCHARGE INCIDENT REPORT 
 

Facility:  Town of Hampden, DPW Municipality: Town of Hampden, Maine 
 

Date of Incident/Exceedence: Discovered December 17, 2015 
 

Verbal Notification Date: 12/18/15 am To Whom: Matt Young 
 

Caller: Sean Currier Phone #: 207-561-5704 

 

Parameter/Pollutant Quantity and Concentration of Release/Exceedence (include test results): 
 Unknown quantity and concentration. Residential waste stream only. 

Specific Location and Duration of Release/Exceedence: 
Illicit connection discovered at 44 Sunrise Lane on December 17, 2015.  It is my understanding that building 

occupancy took place in September of 2014.  

Observed Environmental Effects: 
None observed 

Describe specifically what happened, when, and why (include all details, and use additional pages if 
needed, including maps, diagrams as necessary): 
On Monday, December 14, 2015  HPW was conducting routine storm inspections and noticed a foul smell in a catch 

basin. We were able to find the resident of 44 Sunrise Lane home on December 17 and dye tested the sewer service 

from the property. It was confirmed that the sewer service is connected directly to the separated storm system in the 

street right of way. The house was built by a developer and to my knowledge, the sewer was connected without an 

inspection by the Town. The sewer has been connected since construction of the building on September 2014. There 

is a locating disc on the sewer connection and we have marked it. The contractor/developer was notified on 

December 21 and is currently digging up the service to rectify the issue on December 23, 2015. 

Remedial Actions Taken and Times When Taken: 
The contractor/developer was contacted on Dec 21, 2015 at 11:50am and notified of the cross connection. The HPW 

crew dispatched to site at 12:30 to locate the sewer service. The developer is rectifying the issue on December 23, 

2015.  The new connection will be inspected by HPW prior to backfill. 

Specific Measures Needed to Prevent Recurrence: 
The Town of Hampden is reviewing its permitting process and updating to provide a full permit process including 

inspection and documentation of new sewer installations. 

Implementation Schedule: 
Action Item Description Projected Completion Date 

Developer to rectify illicit connection (underway December 23, 2015) December 24, 2015 

Review permitting process and upgrade accordingly asap 

  

Prepared By: Sean Currier Date: 12/23/15 
 



Discharge Incident Report-44 Sunrise Lane-12.17.15-SJC.doc 

 

 

 

Non-compliance/Discharge Incident Report Form 

 

The Discharge Incident Report Form can be used by treatment facility personnel to notify the Department when any 

licensed parameter has been exceeded or when reporting combined sewer overflow related dry weather overflows 

(DWO's), bypasses, sanitary sewer overflows (SSO's), spills from facility premises to surface waters, or other incidents 

which violate license conditions as per Chapter 523 Rules regarding "Waste Discharge License Conditions."  This 

form is not mandatory, but if you choose not to use it, be sure that the form or letter you do use includes all the 

information that this one does.   

 

As per Chapter 523 "Waste Discharge License Conditions," the permittee shall report any non-compliance which may 

endanger health or the environment orally within 24 hours followed up by a written submission within 5 days of the 

time the permittee became aware of the circumstances.  The following shall also be included as information which 

must be reported within 24 hours: 

 any unanticipated bypass which exceeds any effluent limitation in the permit [including sanitary sewer overflows (SSO's) 

and dry weather overflows (DWO's) from CSO discharge points] 

 any upset which exceeds any effluent limitation in the permit 

 violation of a maximum daily discharge limitation for any of the pollutants listed by the Department in the permit 

 

 

Photo#1-location 

 
 



  
 
TO:  Town Council Infrastructure Committee 
 
FROM:  Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

 
DATE:  December 23, 2015 
 
RE:  Update on Sewer Rates  
 

 
As you’ll recall from the December 7 meeting of the Finance Committee, the revenues generated 
from our sewer bills have fallen short of actual expenses for many years.  
 
DPW Director Currier and I are working to prepare proposals for consideration by the 
Infrastructure Committee, and eventually by the Finance Committee and Town Council, to adjust 
rates in order to cover ongoing operations, repay funds borrowed from the General Fund over 
the years, and rebuild capital reserves in order to make necessary investments in our sewer 
infrastructure. As part of this work, we have been actively engaged with the City of Bangor to 
ensure that their invoices are appropriate based on the terms of our agreements, and to 
anticipate potential rate increases by the City of Bangor that would affect us. Recent 
correspondence regarding a potential Bangor rate increase of 5% is enclosed. 
 
Find enclosed two spreadsheets representing budgeted costs and revenues from the Sewer Fund 
for FY11 to FY16. This illustrates that, on average, costs have exceeded receipts by approximately 
$150,000 to $200,000+ per year. 
 
At Monday’s meeting, Director Currier and I will present our work to date with the goal of 
advancing a process to evaluate and amend sewer rates.  
 
Due to the quarterly billing cycle, and the 30-day lag time after Ordinance amendment before 
the amendment takes effect, it will be critical to establish a new fee structure no later than 
February 2016 in order to apply new rates to second quarter billing (April to June) in 2016. 
Although additional revenues would not be received until July and August 2016, and there are 
nearer-term cash flow challenges that still need to be resolved, this timeline will help the Sewer 
Fund get back on a sustainable financial plan. 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 







12/23/2015 Town of Hampden Mail  RE: Budget items

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=pt&q=andy.rudzinski%40bangormaine.gov&qs=true&search=query&th=151a1a3a593bd50a&siml… 1/2

Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

RE: Budget items
1 message

Rudzinski, Andy <andy.rudzinski@bangormaine.gov> Mon, Dec 14, 2015 at 12:57 PM
To: Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>
Cc: Sean Currier <publicworks@hampdenmaine.gov>, "Cyr, Debbie" <debbie.cyr@bangormaine.gov>

Hi Angus‐

 

I believe that would have to wait until FY2016, so July 1st.  I’ve copied Deb Cyr to make sure.

 

Andy

 

From: Angus Jennings [mailto:townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov]  
Sent: Monday, December 14, 2015 12:52 PM 
To: Rudzinski, Andy <andy.rudzinski@bangormaine.gov> 
Cc: Sean Currier <publicworks@hampdenmaine.gov> 
Subject: Re: Budget items

 

Thanks Andy.  Any idea the potential date of effect of any rate increases?  We are reviewing our sewer rates
and will be bringing forward proposed adjustments as early as next week so want to be sure we're taking this into
account.  Thanks again  

 

On Mon, Dec 14, 2015 at 12:32 PM, Rudzinski, Andy <andy.rudzinski@bangormaine.gov> wrote:

Gentlemen

 

You have asked me to keep you in the loop regarding big, expensive projects at the WWTP, for your budget
purposes.

Last week we received a first estimate for work to be done here from AECOM our engineers.  The Biofilter
media needs replacement, Dissolved Oxygen controls need to be replaced, and our inhouse water supply
needs some work done to the controls.  The estimate provided is $4,742,000.  The work should go forward
during the spring & summer.  DO work this spring, biofilter during the summer.  We are currently still
negotiating final price and scope of work, but this gives us all something to go on. 

 

Also, several folks have asked about any sewer rate increase we might anticipate.  I am advised to tell you
rates will increase, perhaps up to an estimated 5%. 

 

mailto:townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov
mailto:andy.rudzinski@bangormaine.gov
mailto:publicworks@hampdenmaine.gov
mailto:andy.rudzinski@bangormaine.gov


12/23/2015 Town of Hampden Mail  RE: Budget items

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=pt&q=andy.rudzinski%40bangormaine.gov&qs=true&search=query&th=151a1a3a593bd50a&siml… 2/2

Thanks to all and I hope this gets you some of the information needed

 

Andy

 

Andrew Rudzinski, Director Water Quality Management

City of Bangor WWTP

760 Main St.

Bangor, Maine 04401

9924477

andy.rudzinski@bangormaine.gov

 

 

 



 

Angus Jennings
Town Manager

Town of Hampden

106 Western Avenue
Hampden, ME  04444
(207)8623034
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov

 

Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all email and email attachments received or prepared for use in matters concerning
Town Business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which may be inspected by any
person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message in error, please notify us immediately by
return email. Thank you for your cooperation.

mailto:andy.rudzinski@bangormaine.gov
tel:%28207%29-862-3034
mailto:townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov


12/23/2015 Town of Hampden Mail  Intersection Lights at Rt202/Western Ave in Hampden

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=pt&q=andrew%20allen&qs=true&search=query&th=150043fc27e9607a&siml=150043fc27e9607a 1/1

Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

Intersection Lights at Rt202/Western Ave in Hampden 
1 message

Sean Currier <publicworks@hampdenmaine.gov> Fri, Sep 25, 2015 at 7:24 AM
To: "Allen, Andrew" <andrew.allen@maine.gov>
Cc: Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

Andy, Per our initial discussion, I have received a few more complaints about the intersection of
Rt202 and Western Ave as it pertains to cycle times for the lights. During school traffic hours, there
seems to be a substantial issue with the buses having to wait too long to get in to and out of the
school. Also, the lights do not seem to properly detect traffic in the intersection at night. I had
several  requests that the light go to blinking red after 11pm and other requests to just have the
light cycle properly with motion or pressure sensors. Is there something that can be done to rectify
the sensing in the intersection and address the additional bus or school traffic at specific times? We
would be happy to meet with you on this matter if it would help.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

 

Sean

_________________________________
Sean Currier
Public Works Director
Town of Hampden
106 Western Avenue
Hampden, ME 04444
(207)8623337

tel:%28207%29862-3337


12/23/2015 Town of Hampden Mail  Rt202/Western Ave signal

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=pt&q=andrew%20allen&qs=true&search=query&th=1504db064a5f334e&siml=1504db064a5f334e 1/1

Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

Rt202/Western Ave signal 
1 message

Sean Currier <publicworks@hampdenmaine.gov> Fri, Oct 9, 2015 at 1:40 PM
To: "Allen, Andrew" <andrew.allen@maine.gov>
Cc: Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

Andy, I had met with the bus company (Cyr) for Hampden School District and
they would like to have the outgoing, left turn signal stay green longer from 2:00
2:30pm and from 3:003:30pm weekdays to allow buses time to leave out of the
School drive at the intersection of Rt202/Western Ave.  There seems to be
insufficient stacking with two lanes on the outbound school drive preventing buses
time to leave and to keep the vehicle traffic flowing as well. Would the revisions
that DOT had planned on doing to this intersection accommodate this? When
might the intersection work take place.

Thanks for any help and information you can provide.

Sean 
_________________________________
Sean Currier
Public Works Director
Town of Hampden
106 Western Avenue
Hampden, ME 04444
(207)8623337

tel:%28207%29862-3337


12/23/2015 Town of Hampden Mail  Rt 202/ Rt 9 intersection traffic signal

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=pt&q=andrew%20allen&qs=true&search=query&th=151a70bd8f2bd321&siml=151a70bd8f2bd321 1/1

Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

Rt 202/ Rt 9 intersection traffic signal 
1 message

Sean Currier <publicworks@hampdenmaine.gov> Tue, Dec 15, 2015 at 2:09 PM
To: "Allen, Andrew" <andrew.allen@maine.gov>
Cc: Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

Andrew, In our previous discussion, it was mentioned that the traffic signal
detection was going to be rectified before inclement weather hits. Can you please
get me an update as to the progress? I am receiving pressure from above
(councilors, manager, residents etc.) to get this fixed asap.

Any info would be appreciated.

Thanks

Sean 
_________________________________
Sean Currier
Public Works Director
Town of Hampden
106 Western Avenue
Hampden, ME 04444
(207)8623337

tel:%28207%29862-3337


12/23/2015 Town of Hampden Mail  Re: IMPORTANT: Rte 202/ Rte 9 intersection signaling

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=pt&q=andrew%20allen&qs=true&search=query&th=151cff2379a633bb&siml=151cff2379a633bb 1/2

Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

Re: IMPORTANT: Rte 202/ Rte 9 intersection signaling 
1 message

Sean Currier <publicworks@hampdenmaine.gov> Wed, Dec 23, 2015 at 12:45 PM
To: "Allen, Andrew" <Andrew.Allen@maine.gov>
Cc: Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>, David Ryder <rydertowncouncil@hampdenmaine.gov>

Thank you for the update. If you could confirm at your earliest convenience, I
would appreciate it. I assume the School District will not be happy with the
timeframe due to the fact of traffic (buses, student traffic etc) being substantially
backed up from 2pm to 4pm week days with detection not working and our
previous conversation about the work being complete before winter. I assume the
residents (or Hampden PD for that matter) will also not be happy with waiting at a
light in the late evening with no other cars in sight. I'm sure you understand the
concern from my perspective.

Respectfully,

Sean

_________________________________
Sean Currier
Public Works Director
Town of Hampden
106 Western Avenue
Hampden, ME 04444
(207)8623337

On Wed, Dec 23, 2015 at 12:24 PM, Allen, Andrew <Andrew.Allen@maine.gov> wrote:

Hi Sean,

            I have spoken with a couple people who believe that it is scheduled to be done this coming
summer.  I will see what else I can find out, but almost everyone is on vacation & Christmas holiday
the rest of this week, so there is no guarantee I can confirm this before Monday. 

            It also sounds like they may do more than what we had talked about.

 

Andrew Allen

Eastern Region, Traffic Department

941-4505

 

From: Sean Currier [mailto:publicworks@hampdenmaine.gov] 

tel:%28207%29862-3337
mailto:Andrew.Allen@maine.gov
mailto:publicworks@hampdenmaine.gov


12/23/2015 Town of Hampden Mail  Re: IMPORTANT: Rte 202/ Rte 9 intersection signaling

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=pt&q=andrew%20allen&qs=true&search=query&th=151cff2379a633bb&siml=151cff2379a633bb 2/2

Sent: Wednesday, December 23, 2015 12:00 PM
To: Allen, Andrew
Cc: Angus Jennings; David Ryder
Subject: IMPORTANT: Rt 202/ Rt 9 intersection signaling

 

Andrew, It was my understanding that the signaling was
going to be rectified at Rt202/9 well before now. The
Town Manager is continually asking for a progress report
from me and I am unable to provide it. We have a Council
meeting Monday evening and this is a priority on the
agenda. Can you PLEASE provide me with something......I
need an update to whatever has taken place or what will
take place and when prior to Monday.

Thanks.

Sean 
_________________________________

Sean Currier

Public Works Director

Town of Hampden

106 Western Avenue

Hampden, ME 04444

(207)8623337

tel:%28207%29862-3337






WASTE DISPOSAL COMPARISON CHART 

What is important to you? PERC Offering With WasteZero 
PAYT 

Other Plans 

A permitted, fully compliant facility 
 

   ? 

Predictable operating costs 
 

   ? 

Proven technology 
 

   ? 

Long-term, fixed price agreements 
 

   ? 

Strong local control and flexibility 
 

   ? 

No annual tonnage requirements 
 

   ? 

Guaranteed back-up disposal 
 

   ? 

No debt commitment  
 

   ? 

No general obligation for local taxpayers 
 

   ? 

Achieve municipal recycling goals 
 

   ? 

Reduced solid waste disposal 
 

   ? 

Fund all or part of solid waste expenditures, 
including tipping fees and collection 
 

   ? 

 








































